

BUILD INITIATIVE

Surface Transportation Authorization Bill



Working together, the 119th Congress, the U.S. Department of Transportation, and infrastructure agencies like LA Metro have an opportunity to stimulate America's economy by adopting a bold and creative surface transportation authorization bill to replace the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) (P.L. 117-58).

Such a bill can help rebuild America, while smartly and efficiently creating millions of good paying construction, manufacturing and service jobs. These investments will super-charge our national economy by increasing the ability of people and goods to move safely, quickly, and efficiently into and through their hometowns, their state and across America.

In Los Angeles County, LA Metro is already aggressively advancing its work to strengthen America's economy.

Powered by Measure M¹, LA Metro is making investments that have and will continue to create over 450,000 jobs over the coming decades and will produce an economic output in excess of \$79 billion. These statistics, from the independent and well-respected Los Angeles County Economic Development Corporation, show that there is a smart and sustainable path forward to boldly have the private sector and government agencies, like LA Metro, take the lead in growing America's economic strength for the benefit of all Americans for generations to come.

Metro believes our USA Build Initiative is a practical and reform-minded blueprint for federal officials who are poised to craft our nation's next surface transportation authorization bill. LA Metro believes Congress and the Trump Administration can build on the success of the IIJA through a new surface transportation authorization bill, by maintaining its best elements and reforming other elements to make them more effective. LA Metro supports maintaining the authorized funding levels in the IIJA, with modest increases to reflect inflationary pressures that understandably have a significant impact on building and maintaining America's infrastructure.

Key elements of the USA Build Initiative:

- Robust federal funding for infrastructure with American made parts, American sourced materials and American labor
- Strengthening and streamlining proven and 2. effective federal transportation programs
- Reforming federal financial tools to build more 3. Transit-Oriented Development
- Reforming grant programs to recognize the needs of major national events - like the 2028 Olympic and Paralympic Games
- Strong backing for workforce development 5. programs – including Local Hire programs

The attached document contains specific policy recommendations for the upcoming surface transportation reauthorization effort that would advance these principles.

We believe that the principles embedded in the USA Build Initiative will serve to jump-start efforts to bolster America's infrastructure and create a brighter path forward for all Americans by allowing them to secure their share of the American Dream.

¹Measure M was a sales tax overwhelmingly adopted by Los Angeles County voters in 2016 to provide local resources to LA Metro in order to build infrastructure across LA County, the most populous county in the United States of America. Matched with federal funding – Measure M has served as an effective and efficient resource to enhance mobility for the 10 million residents of LA County.

Table of Contents

Capital Investment Grants (CIG) Program and Expedited Project Delivery (EPD) Pilot Program	1
EPD Program Recommendation #1 – Federal Share CIG Program Recommendation #1 – Federal Share CIG Program Recommendation #2 – Project Oversight CIG Program Recommendation #3 – Small Starts CIG Program Recommendation #4 – Local Match	
Olympic and Paralympic Games	3
2028 Games Recommendation #1 – MEGA Program Eligibility 2028 Games Recommendation #2 – MEGA Program Prioritization 2028 Games Recommendation #3 – Transportation Assistance for Olympic Cities	
Local Hire	4
Local Hire Recommendation – Maintain Existing Federal Authorization for Local, Geographic, and Economic Hiring Preferences	
Transit Worker Safety	5
Transit Worker Safety Recommendation – Expand Federal Transit Worker Safety Provisions	
Workforce Development	6
Workforce Development Recommendation #1 – Revise Federal Share for Local Technical Assistance Programs Workforce Development Recommendation #2 – Funding Eligibility Workforce Development Recommendation #3 – Report	
Center for Transportation Excellence	7
Center for Transportation Excellence Recommendation #1 – Provide dedicated funding to support domestic rolling stock testing and manufacturing Center for Transportation Excellence Recommendation #2 – Increase federal share for procurement of domestically manufactured rolling stock Center for Transportation Excellence Recommendation #3 – Allow development of rolling stock testing and manufacturing facilities to be an eligible expense under existing transportation programs	
TIFIA Reforms	8
TIFIA Recommendation #1 – Aligning Underwriting with Market Practices TIFIA Recommendation #2 – Streamline Process TIFIA Recommendation #3 – Align with Categorical Exclusions TIFIA Recommendation #4 – Subsidize Underwriting Fees	
Federal-State Partnership Program	9
Federal-State Partnership Program Recommendation – Expand Eligibility to Commuter Rail	



Capital Investment Grants (CIG) Program and Expedited Project Delivery (EPD) Pilot Program

EPD Program Recommendation #1 - Federal Share

The Expedited Project Delivery pilot program in current law allows the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to expedite the delivery of CIG projects. Los Angeles Metro is the only grantee that has successfully developed a project under the program and secure a full-funding grant agreement. To encourage other projects to utilize this program and expedite projects, this proposal would increase the available CIG funding share from 25% to 35% for projects in the program.

Increase in federal funding share on EPD Pilot Projects

- (a) Section 3005(b) (9) (A) of Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (P.L. 114-94) is amended by striking "25 percent" and inserting "35 percent."
- (b) Section 3005(b) (9) (C) of Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (P.L. 114-94) is amended by striking "75 percent" and inserting "65 percent."
- (c) The amendment made by this Section shall apply to any application for a grant under Section 3005(b) of Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act that is submitted after the date of enactment of this Section.

CIG Program Recommendation #1 - Federal Share

Under current practice, FTA "locks in" the CIG share for a project at the time the recipient seeks approval to enter the engineering phase. This timing means that the CIG share can be fixed several months before actual engineering approval occurs, and prior to the completion of the risk analysis by FTA, which often results in higher project costs. The proposal below would "lock in" the CIG share at the time of actual approval by FTA, after the completion of the risk analysis and other intervening events that could impact project cost.

Timing for determination of New Starts Project Federal Share

- (a) Section 5309(d) (2) of title 49, United States Code, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph at the end thereof:
- "(C) Determination of Federal Share—The Secretary shall establish the Federal percentage share of the net project cost of a new fixed guideway capital project funded under this Section at the time of the advancement of such project into the engineering phase, following any risk analysis

conducted on the project and reflecting the results of such analysis or other intervening events."

- (b) Section 5309(e)(2) of title 49, United States Code, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph at the end thereof:
- "(C) Determination of Federal Share—The Secretary shall establish the Federal percentage share of the net project cost of a new core capacity improvement project funded under this Section at the time of the advancement of such project into the engineering phase, following any risk analysis conducted on the project and reflecting the results of such analysis or other intervening events."

CIG Program Recommendation #2 – Project Oversight

The CIG process has become an extended multiyear process at FTA, delaying the development and delivery of CIG projects. The proposal below would reduce project oversight for experienced grantees that have demonstrated success in delivering projects in the CIG program and streamline the CIG process.

Reduced project oversight for experienced grantees

- (a) Section 5327(d) of title 49, United States Code, is amended by striking "and" at the end of paragraph (2) (B), by striking the period at the end of paragraph (3) and inserting "; and", and by inserting at the end thereof the following new paragraph:
- "(4) a program of reduced and less frequent regular oversight, with semiannual reviews of compliance, for any applicant for funding for a new fixed guideway capital project under Section 5309 if (A) the applicant has entered into two or more full funding grant agreements for new fixed guideway capital projects in the past ten years; (B) the Secretary determines that the applicant has successfully completed, or is in the process of successfully completing, each of such new fixed guideway capital project; and (C) the applicant demonstrates that it satisfies the requirements for expedited technical capacity review set forth in Section 5309(c)(3)(A) and (B)."
- (b) The Secretary shall, within 90 days after the date of enactment of this Section, amend the regulations prescribed under Section 5327 of title 49, United States Code, for purposes of implementing the provisions of this Section.

CIG Program Recommendation #3 – Small Starts

The Small Starts program is a critical tool for LA Metro and project sponsors around the country to deliver needed public transportation projects. However, the federal share threshold for projects receiving funding under this program has only grown marginally over the period of the program's existence. LA Metro recommends increasing the federal share threshold to maximize the utility of this key federal funding tool.

Increase federal share threshold for Small Starts projects
Section 5309(a) (6) (A) of title 49, United States Code, is amended by striking "\$150,000,000" and inserting "\$200,000,000."

CIG Program Recommendation #4 – Local Match

LA Metro is in full support of the American Public Transportation Association's (APTA) recommendation to allow expenditures made by project sponsors to fulfill compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 USC 4321 et seq., made prior to projects entering project development, to be counted toward the local match for projects in the CIG Program. This would include expenditures made for NEPA compliance for small starts, new fixed guideway, expedited project delivery and core capacity projects.

Eligibility of NEPA expenditures for CIG Projects Section 5309(d) (1) of title 49, United States Code, is amended by adding a new subparagraph (D) as follows:

(D) Eligibility of NEPA expenditures—For purposes of new fixed guideway capital projects under this subsection (d), core capacity improvement projects under subsection (e), and small start projects under subsection (h) of Section 5309, and projects under Section 3005(b) of the Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act, as amended by the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, the expedited project delivery for Capital Investment Grants pilot program, any funds expended by an Applicant prior to entrance into the project development phase shall be eligible for credit toward the local match for the project.



Olympic and Paralympic Games

The 2028 Olympic and Paralympic Games (Games) will be the largest and most spectacular sporting event held in American history. As our nation prepares to host these Games in less than four years, LA Metro is taking on the massive task of working to ensure we have a safe, secure, efficient and accessible transportation network in the Los Angeles mega-region for this global sporting event.

With 12 to 15 million ticketholders projected, these Games will be the largest sporting event held in our nation's history. Effectively delivering a safe, secure, efficient, and accessible mobility system to support these games will require the full support of the federal government, including the development of certain necessary improvements to our transportation infrastructure and the provision of essential transportation services.

While LA Metro is pursuing an ambitious mobility plan for the Games, LA Metro is fully committed, first and foremost, to its existing transit riders. LA Metro is proud to provide transit services to hundreds of thousands of LA County residents daily. It is vitally important to ensure that our work related to the Games does not diminish our current transit services. This is why it is especially important for LA Metro to secure additional federal funds to help ensure that all the efforts LA Metro makes with respect to the Games are additive in nature and do not compromise existing levels of transit services.

2028 Games Recommendation #1 – MEGA Program Eligibility

Eliminate the requirement in the National Infrastructure Project Assistance ("MEGA") Program that public transportation projects must be part of another eligible project to receive assistance under the program.

2028 Games Recommendation #2 – MEGA Program Prioritization

Prioritize funding provided under the National Infrastructure Project Assistance ("MEGA") Program to projects that will support a designated National Special Security Event.

2028 Games Recommendation #3 – Transportation Assistance for Olympic Cities

Update the dates and include S.4348 (117th Cong.), the Transportation Assistance for Olympic Cities Act of 2022, in the surface transportation reauthorization bill.



Local Hire

Traditionally, federal procurement regulations have not permitted agencies, like LA Metro, to require bidders to establish local hiring programs, or to take local hiring directly into account in the bid evaluation process. The historical rationale for this prohibition was that the federal gas tax (18.4 cents per gallon) is collected from around the nation and, therefore, all individuals and companies in the United States should have access to any given project.

LA Metro has held a longstanding policy – as adopted by successive Board-approved Federal Legislative Programs – that federal law was not considering the new reality of how transportation projects are financed, which today, is often through a majority of funds being derived from local dollars. For example, at present and into the future, over 70% of LA Metro's budget for operations and capital projects is and will be funded through tax dollars from LA County residents.

For this reason, dating back to 2011, LA Metro has been a national leader in seeking to reform federal Local Hire prohibitions. This included LA Metro working with key congressional stakeholders to support the Local Hire Act that sought to permit local hiring programs on transportation projects using federal funding. In addition, LA Metro worked successfully to embed language in the Consolidated Appropriations Bill for Fiscal Year 2015 (P.L. 113-235) that explicitly permitted Local Hiring on transportation projects using federal funding. In March

of 2015, LA Metro worked with the U.S. Department of Transportation to launch a Local Hire Pilot Program — which was subsequently extended by a notice published in the Federal Register in 2017, for a period of five years.

As a direct result of LA Metro's leadership in working with the White House and Congress, the IIJA (P.L. 117-58) authorized the use of local, geographic and economic hiring preferences for construction labor in projects funded under the federal transportation programs. Project sponsors no longer need to seek and obtain approval from the U.S. Department of Transportation on a project-by-project basis to exercise such local hiring preferences. With this federal Local Hire provision, LA Metro has moved forward to implement successful local hiring programs on its construction projects.

Local Hire Recommendation – Maintain Existing Federal Authorization for Local, Geographic, and Economic Hiring Preferences

To maintain existing policy set in the IIJA and encourage additional project sponsors across the nation to adopt local hiring preferences, we propose maintaining Section 25019 of the IIJA, as currently enacted, in the next surface transportation reauthorization bill.

Transit Worker Safety



According to data from the National Transit Database (NTD), assaults on transit workers increased more than 232% between 2014 and 2024. This trend of increasing assaults on transit workers is unacceptable and provides clear evidence of the need for additional local, state and federal actions to protect transit workers who are providing freedom of movement to millions of Americans every day. LA Metro CEO Stephanie Wiggins has consistently emphasized that all transit riders and workers in LA County and more broadly, across America, deserve a safe transit experience. To quote LA Metro's CEO, "nothing we're working on is more important than addressing public safety on our system."

LA Metro has taken decisive steps to enhance the safety of its transit system – for riders and workers. LA Metro has installed improved bus operator barriers on its entire bus fleet to protect our bus operators. Specifications for future bus procurements by LA Metro now include requirements for bus operator compartments to provide more secure, less reflective and more comfortable work areas to reduce the need for retrofitting later. LA Metro has increased law enforcement. LA Metro Transit Security, LA Metro Ambassadors and private security on our system so that people see an engaged and visible presence of uniformed personnel. LA Metro has enhanced access control by stepping up fare inspections, trespasser checks, and installation of taller fare gates and the TAP-to-Exit program. LA Metro has strengthened our partnerships to address societal issues that affect our system. As a result, our system is becoming safer, cleaner and more comfortable for both our employees and our riders.

The IIJA (P.L. 117-58) created a strong framework for transit agencies across the United States to embrace stronger safety and security practices, including mandatory performance measures for transit agencies subject to the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan regulation to address assaults on transit workers. The FTA has made considerable progress in taking actions to increase frontline transit worker safety to reverse the troubling trend documented by the NTD figure cited above. LA Metro recommends implementing recommendations made by the Transit Advisory Committee for Safety (TRACS, 2022-2024) in its Advancing Rider and Worker Safety Report (Report22-02) on 2/1/24. TRACS report 22-01, includes published recommendations that define best practices to prevent rider and worker assaults and suggests FTA actions for implementing those recommendations. (https://www. transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-programs/safety/advancingrider-and-worker-safety-tracs-final-report)

Transit Worker Safety Recommendation – Expand Federal Transit Worker Safety Provisions

LA Metro encourages Congress to dedicate additional funding (not diminishing existing funds directed towards operations) towards federal transit worker safety activities pursuant to Urbanized Area Formula Grants (Section 5307), State of Good Repair Grants (Section 5337), Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities (Section 5339), and as recommended in TRACS Report 22-01.

Workforce Development



LA Metro is a national leader on workforce development - receiving the APTA Innovation Award for its forwardthinking programs tied to current and future workforce needs. Mindful that over 50% of the transportation industry workforce will be eligible for retirement in the next 10 years – a pace double that of the nation's entire workforce – LA Metro has invested heavily in several key initiatives designed to highlight and promote transportation as a top-tier career choice. LA Metro is proud to have been a leader to establish, in cooperation with LA County and the SEED Foundation, the SEED School of LA County. The school is the nation's first public boarding school for grades 9-12 to focus specifically on the future workforce needs of the transportation industry. LA Metro provides students with real world learning opportunities that educate, engage, expose and employ students within the transportation and infrastructure industry. LA Metro also has received national accolades for our LA Metro Career Pathways/ Workforce Initiative Now-Los Angeles (WIN-LA) programs, which increased opportunities for LA County residents, including single parents and former foster care youth. LA Metro's Room to Work Program provides job opportunities for those transitioning from homelessness. Most recently, LA Metro has taken decisive steps to boost female participation in the construction workforce that is powering the most ambitious transit capital construction program in the United States.

Workforce Development Recommendation #1 - Revise Federal Share for Local Technical **Assistance Programs**

Change the federal share for local technical assistance programs from 50% to 100% by revising 23 U.S.C. § 504(e)(2) to read as follows:

(2) Federal share—The Federal share of the cost of activities carried out in accordance with this subsection shall be 100%.

Workforce Development Recommendation #2 Funding Eligibility

LA Metro encourages Congress to amend all federal transportation grant programs to include a permissible 5% eligibility for workforce development activities relevant to each grant program. This will allow each recipient to allocate up to 5% of each grant for critical workforce development activities related to that grant.

Workforce Development Recommendation #3 Report

LA Metro encourages Congress to require the Secretary to submit a report to Congress that addresses the following: (1) identification of which recipients (both state and local governmental entities) have dedicated federal-aid funds to workforce development activities; (2) description of workforce development activities supported by federal-aid funds; (3) assessment of workforce needs across all aspects of the infrastructure development industry, including but not limited to the planning, design, construction, operations and technology disciplines; and (4) recommend best practices, using real-world examples, of workforce development activities that have been supported by federal-aid funds and which benefit the communities in which these activities occurred.



Center for Transportation Excellence

LA Metro is catalyzing reinvestment in domestic rail and bus car manufacturing through the development of a vehicle testing center, innovation and training center, and proving ground. The project, known as the "Metro Center for Transportation Excellence (MCTE)," will greatly improve the availability of vehicle development and testing, so transportation agencies and operators can reduce costs and accelerate bus and rail vehicle delivery across Los Angeles and the Western United States, where nearly 13,000 rail cars and 16,000 buses are expected to be procured over the next two decades. MCTE will also function to train the next generation of transit operators, mechanics, technicians and engineers, and estimates the creation of approximately 114,000 jobs directly and indirectly in LA County, with the return of full-scale rail manufacturing to the U.S.

Center for Transportation Excellence Recommendation #1 – Provide dedicated funding to support domestic rolling stock testing and manufacturing

We propose that the next surface transportation reauthorization bill include dedicated funding for the development of rollingstock testing and manufacturing facilities. Eligibility requirements to access such funds should include (1) demonstration that recipients have taken tangible steps towards the development of such facilities, such as identifying a suitable site that is viable to accommodate testing and future buildout, and committing non-federal funding, and (2) demonstration that the facility is in proximity to shipping corridors and markets of identified demand for rolling stock.

Center for Transportation Excellence Recommendation #2 – Increase federal share for procurement of domestically manufactured rolling stock

To recognize the important federal interest in the development of rolling stock testing and manufacturing facilities, we propose that the federal share payable for costs related to these activities receive a 90% federal/10% non-federal share, across all eligible funding sources.

Center for Transportation Excellence Recommendation #3 – Allow development of rolling stock testing and manufacturing facilities to be an eligible expense under existing transportation programs

To provide recipients of federal funding greater flexibility in the future to dedicate such funds towards the Center for Transportation Excellence and similar endeavors, we propose expanding the eligibility of existing federal transportation programs to allow for costs related to development of rolling stock testing and manufacturing facilities. Specifically, this change should be enacted in the Bus and Bus Facilities Program under 49 U.S.C. § 5339 and the Consolidated Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvements (CRISI) Program under 49 U.S.C. § 22907. In addition, we propose that the competitive portion of the Bus and Bus Facilities Program under 49 U.S.C. § 5339(b), and the CRISI Program, include set-asides specifically for the purpose of promoting development of rolling stock testing and manufacturing facilities.

TIFIA Reforms



The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law made important reforms to the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program. LA Metro has been a longstanding supporter of the TIFIA program – working in 2012 with Congress to embed its own initiative to reform the program and ultimately having that provision embedded into MAP-21 under Title 2, Section 2002 – America Fast Forward Financing Innovation Act of 2012. At that time, LA Metro was eager to make the TIFIA program an effective and efficient financial tool for transit projects. Soon thereafter, LA Metro concluded nearly \$2 billion in TIFIA agreements for a range of transit projects, from the Crenshaw/LAX transit project to the Westside Purple Line Extension and the Downtown Regional Connector transit projects.

With the nation's most ambitious Transit Oriented Development (TOD) program, LA Metro would like to see reforms included in the next surface transportation authorization bill that will make the TIFIA program a more practical and efficient tool to use when applied to TOD projects. To date, LA Metro has developed over 2,300 housing units — many of them affordable — at over 15 sites across LA County. In the coming years, LA Metro is planning to grow its portfolio to 10,000 housing units by making 20 new properties available for development — with 5,000 of these units being set aside for low-income households. To meet this ambitious goal, LA Metro would support the following reforms to make the TIFIA program more TOD-friendly.

TIFIA Recommendation #1 – Aligning Underwriting with Market Practices

To align TIFIA financing assistance with the needs of TOD projects, LA Metro proposes that the TIFIA statutory authorization and guidance allow for underwriting processes and credit rating requirements comparable to those required by the market for conventionally financed TOD and real estate development projects. As an

alternative, LA Metro proposes that the TIFIA statutory authorization permit a project sponsor's balance sheet and programmatic revenue streams to backstop a TOD project's financial assistance.

TIFIA Recommendation #2 – Streamline Process

To align TIFIA financing assistance with the needs of TOD projects and to maximize the opportunity of attracting a diverse financing stack, LA Metro proposes that the TIFIA statutory authorization and guidance provide a streamlined process for TOD projects.

TIFIA Recommendation #3 – Align with Categorical Exclusions

Because TOD projects often have environmental impacts more akin to the activities supported by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") and the U.S. Department of Agriculture ("USDA"), we propose expanding the applicable categorical exclusions for TOD projects to include those categorical exclusions available to HUD and USDA.

TIFIA Recommendation #4 – Subsidize Underwriting Fees

To expand the utility of TIFIA financing assistance to TOD projects, we propose subsidizing the TIFIA loan underwriting fees to allow more typically sized housing projects to apply. By way of background, current TIFIA fees are an impediment to projects with fewer than 400 units.



Federal-State Partnership Program

Commuter rail plays an integral role in the delivery of seamless, cost-effective rail transportation that connects rural and suburban communities within populated regions with economic opportunity and businesses with greater access to the workforce. Commuter rail plays the key connecting system between longer-distance intercity rail and local bus and rail systems that drive ridership into the intercity system, making them more cost-effective and providing more transportation benefit for larger regions and states to leverage federal, regional and local investment. Coordinating investment in the passenger rail system for intercity and commuter service allows for cross-leveraging of funds, increased benefits for all passengers and greater opportunity generated from the investment.

In Southern California, the Metrolink (Southern California Regional Rail Authority, or SCRRA) serves five counties and is the nation's third largest commuter rail operator linking rural, suburban and urban communities along 437 route miles. Regional rail closely parallels congested freeway corridors, providing a high-quality transit alternative that reduces congestion on the freeway system, creating greater capacity and velocity for the movement of people and goods on the freeway system. Metrolink has a strong relationship with the Amtrak/Los Angeles—San Diego—San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor (LOSSAN) system, providing interlined service that connects more population and employment centers to the Intercity Rail system, providing direct benefit to the ridership and economic value of the Intercity Rail system.

The Metrolink system will also play a key role in connecting the planned southern terminus of the Brightline West system with the downtown Los Angeles area through a direct transfer in Rancho Cucamonga. In preparation for the upcoming 2026 FIFA World Cup and Los Angeles 2028 Olympic and Paralympic Games, the Metrolink system will connect the economic opportunity provided in the urban core with employees and visitors from the outlying suburban and rural cities and counties connected to LA County only by Metrolink.

Expanding funding eligibility for commuter rail systems that have direct connection to an intercity rail system will provide opportunity for ridership growth and greater economic benefit provided by existing federal investment in the Intercity Rail system and leverage more funding with state and local funds dedicated to commuter rail system improvements.

Federal-State Partnership Program Recommendation – Expand Eligibility to Commuter Rail

Amend 49 U.S.C. § 24911 to expand eligibility of the Federal-State Partnership Program to "commuter rail passenger transportation" as such term is defined in 49 U.S.C. §24102. This should include expansion of eligible applicants, eligible projects, and all other relevant and conforming changes necessary to allow commuter rail projects and providers to participate in this program.



